
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes from the November 20, 2024 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of an exception to Section 34.10 of the Architectural Review and Landscape
Code for the property located at 1731 Cranston Road

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-032 approving a two-lot extraterritorial certified survey
map for the property located on the 4700-4800 block of E Ryan Parkway in the Town of
Turtle

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2024-031 approving a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for the property located at 3918 S Duggan Road in the Town of Beloit

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Architectural Review Exception - Bagels and More
Annexation - Murphy Woods and S Creek Roads
Extraterritorial Final Plat - Creekside Estates

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Preliminary Plat for Elmwood Commons Plat 2 
Zoning Map Amendment - 423 St. Lawrence Avenue
Sign Ordinance Exception - 2825 Prairie Avenue - Mercy Clinic
Preliminary Plat for the remainder of Eagles Ridge Subdivision

 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, December 4, 2024

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - December 4, 2024

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3010521/11-20-2024_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3009951/ARC-EXP-2024-03__1731_Cranston_Road.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3008377/PC_Report_-_CSM-2024-19__E_Ryan_Parkway___TOT_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3008415/PC_Report_-_CSM-2024-20__3918_Duggan_Road___TOB_.pdf


** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - December 4, 2024

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
MINUTES 

PLAN COMMISSION 
City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, November 20, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Winkelmann, Elliott, Flesch, Anderson, and Jacobsen and Councilor Day were present. 
Commissioner Abarca was absent. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the October 23, 2024 Plan Commission meeting 

Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve the Minutes, seconded by 
Commissioner Flesch.  Motion prevailed, voice vote (5-0-1), with Commissioner 
Anderson abstaining.  

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-030 approving a Conditional Use Permit to allow a 
church use on the property located at 717 Bluff St 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch made a motion for approval, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen.   Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 
 

3.b. Consideration of an exception to Section 34.15(1) of the Architectural Review 
Landscape Code to allow more than 25 percent of the exterior surface of any wall on 
a non-industrial building to be metal for the property located at 324 State Street 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked whether there was financial assistance available for this 
project. Ms. Christensen explained that the Downtown Business Association (DBA) 
offers a facade grant program. Ramsden inquired whether this program would be a 
viable option for the applicant. Ms. Christensen confirmed that it would be, as the 
property falls within the Downtown Business Improvement District. Ramsden then 
asked if the applicant had explored this option. Ms. Christensen responded that the 
applicant had not, as they were hoping the Plan Commission would approve the metal 
option based on discussions at the previous meeting. 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked whether the City had previously approved any 
exceptions to allow metal materials. Ms. Christensen mentioned that Bryden’s oil 
change facility had applied for an exception to use an insulated metal panel.  It was 
approved, as it looked similar to other non-metal siding options. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked for additional information on a recent change to the 
Architectural Review Ordinance.  Ms. Christensen outlined the ordinance change and 
commented that the ordinance change allowed metal for the Family Services project, 
as the new ordinance allowed metal on walls which did not front on a public street.  
Since this project included an interior courtyard area, they no longer needed the 
exception. 
 
Commissioner Anderson reflected on the old Kerry building that was recently 
demolished, describing it as an unattractive structure that had all four sides wrapped 
in a metal facade. He asked, "Would something like that be permitted under this 
ordinance?" Ms. Christensen said no.  
 
Ms. Christensen explained that the ordinance was developed after former City 
Manager Larry Arft was hired by the City who wanted to bring higher quality standards 
to the City.  She gave examples of projects that turned out badly due to the lack of an 
ordinance to regulate the exteriors of buildings.  Without clear guidelines, the city had 
limited control over materials and building quality. The goal was to establish quality 
standards that would result in quality buildings and businesses. 
 
Ms. Christensen acknowledged that this case is challenging for both staff and the 
applicant, as the applicant is simply looking to secure the wall. While the city would 
prefer materials more fitting for downtown, she understood both sides of the issue. 
The ordinance was refined with minor adjustments to define previously unclear terms 
and to clearly outline what materials were unacceptable. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann began by stating that the wall in question isn't visible from 
the street and can only be seen with effort from Broad Street or the parking lot. He 
acknowledged that the applicant had done a great job on the rest of the building, 
restoring its historical appearance and considering the interior design. He emphasized 
that the front facade, which is most visible and significant, has been well executed. 
 
He expressed difficulty in justifying holding up the project over this issue, as the wall 
isn’t visible from the front of the building. However, he noted that the wall still needs 
to be addressed, as leaving it unresolved could lead to problems for the other buildings 
in the area. 
 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Chairperson Ramsden asked Commissioner Winkelmann asked how this fit under the 
findings of fact to justify granting an exception. Commissioner Winkelmann pointed 
out that this likely referred to section B. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden confirmed this and quoted section B, which states that the city 
council finds special circumstances related to the size, shape, topography, location, or 
surroundings of the property in question. He then asked if they were talking about 
special circumstances related to the location. Commissioner Winkelmann affirmed this 
was correct. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden added that while the metal siding wouldn’t be visible from the 
front elevation on State Street, it would be noticeable from the rear side of the 
building, as seen from Broad Street and the Mill Street parking lot, according to the 
staff write-up. 
 
Commissioner Flesch commented that while the applicant claims a financial issue, he 
hasn't stated that this is the only financially feasible option. He questioned how much 
more the higher-quality metal would add to the project’s cost. Commissioner Flesch 
acknowledged that financial hardship is not typically a factor in these decisions, but it 
would be more acceptable to approve metal if a higher-quality metal was used. 
 
He emphasized that while the applicant has done great work, it’s important to 
continue maintaining that standard. Without knowing the cost difference between the 
proposed metal and a more suitable alternative, Commissioner Flesch expressed 
difficulty in agreeing to the current proposal. While he isn't opposed to metal in 
general, he is against the use of this type of metal. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if Commissioner Flesch was approaching this from a 
hardship perspective. Commissioner Flesch clarified that it’s not technically a hardship.  
He stated that he dislikes the product being proposed and doesn’t believe it meets the 
code, stressing the importance of upholding higher standards.  He expressed concern 
that accepting lower standards now could set a precedent for future compromises.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked Ms. Christensen if choosing a different type of siding 
would eliminate the need for an exception. Ms. Christensen confirmed that if the 
material is not metal, an exception would not be required.  
 
Ms. Christensen explained that the applicant is relying on Klobucar Construction for 
guidance, but she isn’t sure what direction they’ve been given regarding materials. She 
added that the applicant’s primary goal, when last seen, was to address moisture 
issues on the upper floor. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen remarked that it seems the applicant hasn’t explored other 
alternatives, and now that the matter is back before the committee, there still appears 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

to be no option other than a different color. He agreed with Mr. Flesch's earlier point 
and expressed appreciation for the Planning Department’s recommendation for 
denial. 
 
Commissioner Anderson expressed concern about the lack of differentiation in the 
ordinance between types of metal. He mentioned that if the decision is based on 
personal preferences of what the City Council or Planning Committee thinks looks 
good, it becomes a slippery slope. He emphasized the importance of adhering to the 
ordinance and choosing materials that enhance the downtown area, ensuring it moves 
forward rather than backward. 
 
Councilor Day expressed strong support for ensuring the downtown area remains 
visually appealing, especially considering the investments made over the past decade. 
He acknowledged that the applicant claims this is the only cost-effective solution for 
addressing the deteriorating south wall, but he challenged that assertion, suggesting 
that there are other viable options. He emphasized that the current proposal doesn’t 
align with the character of downtown and that there are plenty of alternatives.  
 
Ms. Christensen acknowledged that the situation might be her fault for how the 
proposal was brought back. She explained that during the last conversation, she 
understood the main concern to be the color, specifically the red, and thought there 
might be support for the proposed type of metal. She took responsibility for 
communicating that to the applicant. 
 
Commissioner Elliott asked if, in the case that he can't afford any other material and 
decides to leave it as it is, it would look better than using the taupe metal. 
Commissioner Winkelmann said that's a valid point. He needs to repair it. It's leaking, 
causing deterioration, and impacting his business, so it's falling apart. The next step is 
to address the repairs. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden acknowledged the concern with the building, saying that while 
it might not be something that would cause an accident, he understands the point 
from a practical perspective. Looking at it, he doesn't think it would have a significant 
negative impact on the downtown area. 
 
He further stated that from Commissioner Winkelmann's viewpoint, an argument 
could be made to grant an exception under item B, since the building isn't facing State 
Street. Chairperson Ramsden indicated that he would be voting in favor of the motion 
to grant the exception. 
 
Commissioner Flesch explained that the buildings in question have two fronts—one 
facing State Street and the other facing the parking area, with access to both. He noted 
that the visibility of the rear/front side from the parking lot does have an impact. 

6



 

5 | P a g e  
 

He pointed out how well the side facades of the other buildings look from the parking 
lot, and questioned whether having a lesser quality facade on the rear would detract 
from the overall appearance. While acknowledging that the building clearly needs 
work, he emphasized that if improvements are being made, they should aim to 
enhance the overall look and align with the quality of the other facades. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion for approval, seconded by Commissioner 
Ramsden.   Motion failed, roll call vote (2-4), with Chairperson Ramsden and 
Commissioner Winkelmann supporting the motion. 
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of an Extraterritorial Final Plat of Creekside Estates in the Town of 

Beloit 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

 
Commissioner Flesch made a motion for approval, seconded by Commissioner Elliott.   
Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 
 

4.b. Consideration of a request to annex five properties located on the 9400-9500 Block 
of South Creek Road and the 2300 Block of Murphy Woods Road from the Town of 
Turtle 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Megan Martin, 2433 Murphy Woods Road, stated she is a new neighbor on the block, 
and wanted to clarify whether their properties are going to be annexed into the City 
of Beloit or if they will remain in the Town of Turtle. There has been some confusion 
over the property lines, particularly regarding how much of the back portion of their 
properties might be affected. 
 
We really love our neighborhood, and it’s been a great place to live since we moved in 
about two or three years ago. Our main concern is the potential change in our property 
taxes if the land were annexed into the City rather than staying in the Town of Turtle. 
Ms. Christensen said that they will not be annexed into the City.  
 
Ms. Martin explained that they were told the property line extended six feet behind 
their field, and that some of their backyard property might belong to others. However, 
they have been maintaining that portion of the land. They inquired about "squatters 
rights" in relation to the property. 
 
Ms. Christensen said that the response clarified that "squatters rights" would not 
automatically apply and would require going to court. The situation being discussed 
tonight concerns the annexation of specific parcels, as shown in the maps, which 

7



 

6 | P a g e  
 

belong to the applicant. The applicant is requesting to annex their own property into 
the city to receive sewer and water services for development. The annexation would 
not affect the property belonging to the neighbors unless they themselves submit a 
request to be annexed into the city. No action is being taken to annex properties 
without a request from the property owner. 
 
Commissioner Anderson explained that a property line is a fixed boundary. However, 
when surrounding properties change ownership or are developed—whether it's a 
single house or a larger project—it can alter the surrounding area. If you're utilizing 
land beyond your property line, you may need to discuss the situation with an 
attorney.   
 
Ms. Christensen suggested reaching out to the developer, Zach Knutson from Next 
Generation Holdings.  He is local and may be willing to sell a strip of land to the 
neighbors. 
 
Karen Thorson, 2425 East Murphy Woods Road, asked if their properties could be 
annexed by the City in the future without their consent and if that happens, who makes 
that decision.  Chairperson Ramsden said that the annexation comes from the property 
owner as a request.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked about the request for PLI zoning on the application, and 
Ms. Christensen explained that she was unsure of why they made the request, but that 
PLI zoning would not be acceptable, as the plan is for a residential subdivision. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen made a motion for approval, seconded by Commissioner 
Anderson.   Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 

 
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 

Julie Christensen provided an update on items previously reviewed by the Commission. 
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. The next meeting is scheduled for 
December 4, 2024.    
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Flesch made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Ramsden at 7:58 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 

 
 

 
  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

8



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 4, 2024 

Agenda Item:  3.a. 

File Number:  ARC/EXP-2024-03 

 
General Information 

 
Applicant:  Aaron Nilson 
 
Owner:  A-Train Properties, LLC 
 
Address/Location:  1731 Cranston Road  
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:  Aaron Nilson, on behalf of A-Train Properties, LLC, has applied 
for an exception to Section 34.10 of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code, which 
requires lighting for off-street parking areas. The request pertains to the property located at 
1731 Cranston Road in the City of Beloit. 
 
Staff Analysis 

 
Project Background:  In April, 2024, the applicant began removing, replacing and enlarging the 
existing commercial parking lot located at 1731 Cranston Road without submitting the required 
plans for site plan review and approval. According to Section 2-601 of the Zoning Ordinance, a 
site plan is required when an existing parking lot or paved outdoor storage area is enlarged by 
25 percent or more, or when 25 percent or more of its surface is removed and replaced with a 
new paved surface.  
 
Additionally, under Section 34.02(2)(b)(4)(d) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code, 
properties legally established before July 19, 1999 are exempt from landscape regulations. 
However, these properties are required to brought into full compliance with the current 
landscape regulations when 25 percent or more of the parking lot surface is removed and 
replaced. This includes compliance with Section 34.10 of the Architectural Review and 
Landscape Code, which requires lighting of off-street parking areas.   
 
The applicant was directed to stop work on the parking lot until a site plan that complies with 
the City’s ordinance requirements was submitted and approved. The site plan is currently under 
review as part of the site plan approval process, which can be completed pending Plan 
Commission recommendation and City Council determination of the requested exception to 
parking lot lighting.  
 

9



Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The subject property is zoned C-1, Office District. To the 
north and east, are single-family residences zoned R-1A, Single-family Residential. Family 
Dentistry and a beauty store zoned C-1, Office, and C-3, Community Commercial, respectively 
are located to the south. Carpet Market zoned M-1, Light Industrial is located to the west.   
 
Applicant’s Hardship Argument: 
According to the applicant, the property has been in operation for over 40 years, and the 
upgraded parking lot will provide a total of 11 parking stalls. The applicant contends that the 
existing ambient lighting from the on-site sign and building is sufficient to adequately illuminate 
the parking area, and that installing additional light poles and fixtures to illuminate the parking 
lot, an area that is not used outside of normal business hours, would be cost-prohibitive. 
 
Findings of Fact: Section 34.22(5) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code states that 
the City Council may grant exceptions to the regulations contained in this chapter when: 
 

(a) Such exceptions are in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this chapter; 
and The purpose of the lighting regulation is to ensure safety, security, and visibility on 
site. Granting an exception that creates inadequate lighting would not align with the 
general intent of these regulations, which are designed to protect both public and 
private interests by reducing safety hazards and discouraging criminal activity. 
Additionally, this exception has never been requested or granted before, maintaining 
lighting requirements for parking areas as a longstanding and consistent policy. 
 

(b) The City Council finds that special circumstances exist involving the size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings of the property referred to in the application; 
and There are no identifiable special circumstances such as unique size, shape, 
topography, location, or surroundings that would justify granting an exception to the 
lighting requirement. The property does not exhibit characteristics that would warrant 
an exemption from the established regulations.  
 

(c) Denial of the exception will cause unreasonable or unnecessary hardship. While the 
applicant has expressed concerns about the cost of installing lighting, staff does not 
believe that denying the exception would create an unreasonable hardship. These 
regulations are in place to ensure the safety and welfare of the community, and 
compliance with them is a standard requirement for owning and maintaining 
commercial properties within the City. 

 
(d) Granting the exception will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property 

in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the general welfare of the neighborhood or the 
public. Granting the exception could compromise the safety and security of the 
property. Additionally, approving this exception could set a precedent for future 
projects seeking similar exemptions, potentially leading to negative impacts on 
neighboring properties and, collectively, the City as a whole. 

 

10



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends denial of the request for an exception 
to Section 34.10 of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code, which requires lighting for 
off-street parking areas, for the property located at 1731 Cranston Road, based upon the 
standards for granting an exception. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Photo, Site Plan, Public Notice, and Application. 

11



Location Map 

 
 

 
 
  

12



 

13



 

14



 

15



 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
November 26, 2024 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Aaron Nilson, on behalf of A-Train Properties, LLC, has applied an exception to Section 34.10 of 
the Architectural Review and Landscape Code, which requires lighting for off-street parking 
areas. The request pertains to the property located at 1731 Cranston Road in the City of Beloit. 
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding the application: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, December 4, 2024, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Monday, December 16, 2024 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can 
be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. * 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and submit 
them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to the 
attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You 
may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone.  

16

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


 

 

 

17



 

 

18



  

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 4, 2024 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2024-19 

General Information 
Applicant:  David Earl, R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
Owner:  Jeremy J. Walkey and Deanna K. Walkey 
Address:  4700-4800 Block of E. Ryan Parkway/Parcel 6-19-1170.106 
Jurisdiction: Town of Turtle 
Applicant’s Request: Two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 
Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to divide a vacant 
2.831-acre parcel that is located within the Turtlerock Estates subdivision into two lots.  The 
owners plan to sell the lots in the future. The proposed Lot 1 is 1.477 acres.  The proposed Lot 2 
is 1.354 acres.  The proposed CSM will essentially revert the 2.831-acre parcel, which was 
created through a previous CSM in 2021, back into the two original lots (previously 5 and 6) of 
the Turtlerock Estates subdivision recorded in 2007.   
  
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The property is subject to Town zoning and is zoned R-R, 
Rural Residential District, which requires new lots to be a minimum of 100 feet wide and 40,000 
square feet.  The proposed lots meet these requirements.  Regardless, the City cannot enforce 
Town standards. The property is located within a Rural Residential subdivision and is 
surrounded by R-R zoned parcels, all in the Town. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Single Family Residential for the subject property. Note that Single 
Family Residential is a future land use category in the updated Comprehensive Plan that 
identifies existing single family detached residential development served by some combination 
of individual on-site well and wastewater treatment (septic) systems and typically located 
outside of City limits. As such, the proposed Lot 1 and Lot 2 conform to the Comprehensive 
Plan.  However, land use cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM 
applications according to state law. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  The CSM was sent to the City’s review agents.  No comments were 
submitted. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot 
Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located on the 4700-4800 Block of 

19



  

E. Ryan Parkway in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Application, Proposed Certified Survey Map and Resolution. 
 

20



  

LOCATION MAP 

 
Rock County, Wisconsin Land Records 
 
 

21



  

 

22



  

23



  

RESOLUTION 2024-032 
 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE 4700-4800 BLOCK OF  

E. RYAN PARKWAY IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of 
Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the City 
of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map located on the 4700-4800 Block of E. Ryan 
Parkway in the Town of Turtle, containing 2.831 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-lot 
Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NUMBER 2200791, RECORDED IN VOLUME 41 ON 
PAGE 311 BEING PART OF THE NW ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 27, T. 1 N., R. 13. E., OF THE 4TH 
P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. CONTAINING 2.831 ACRES. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit does hereby 

conditionally approve the attached two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map located on the 4700-
4800 Block of E. Ryan Parkway in the Town of Turtle subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of 
approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 4th day of December, 2024. 

       Plan Commission 
 
 
   

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

24



  

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 4, 2024 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2024-20 

General Information 
Applicant:  Steven L. Schmidt of Lakeland Surveyors LLC 
Owner:  Richard and Shirley Thompson Revocable Trust 
Address:  3918 S. Duggan Road/Parcel 6-2-34 
Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit 
Applicant’s Request: Two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 
Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to divide an 81.2-
acre parcel into two lots.  The proposed Lot 1 is 5.5 acres and includes the existing farmstead, 
buildings and well and septic system to be retained by the owner.  The proposed Lot 2 is 74.7 
acres that is anticipated to remain cropland but be sold by the owner. 
  
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The property is subject to Town zoning and is zoned A-1, 
Farmland Preservation District, which requires new lots to be a minimum of 500 feet wide and 
35 acres.  The proposed Lot 2 meets this area standard but not the lot width standard. The 
proposed Lot 1 is planned to be rezoned to A-2, General Agricultural District, which requires 
new lots to be a minimum of 200 feet wide and 3 acres.  The proposed Lot 1 meets the A-2 
standards. In either case, the City cannot enforce Town standards. The property is surrounded 
by A-1 zoned parcels on the west, north and south, with A-2 and R-1, Single-Family Residential 
District zoned parcels to the east, and C-1, Conservancy District and I-1, Light Industrial District 
zoned parcels to the northeast, all in the Town. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Agriculture for the subject property. Note that Agriculture is a future 
land use category in the updated Comprehensive Plan that identifies agricultural uses, 
farmsteads, and other open lands at or below a residential density of 1 dwelling unit per 40 
gross acres.  As such, the proposed Lot 1 does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan.  
However, land use cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications 
according to state law. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  The CSM was sent to the City’s review agents.  No comments were 
submitted. 
  

25



  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot 
Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 3918 S. Duggan Road in 
the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Application, Proposed Certified Survey Map, Site Assessment 
Checklist and Resolution. 
 

26



  

LOCATION MAP 
 

Rock County, Wisconsin Land Records 
 
 

27



  

 

28



  

29



  

 

30



  

31



  

32



  

33



  

RESOLUTION 2024-031 
 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3918 S. DUGGAN ROAD IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of 

Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the City 
of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for 3918 S. Duggan Road in the Town of 
Beloit, containing 81.4022 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the 
City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-lot 
Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

OUTLOT 13 OF THE ASSESSOR’S PLAT OF THE TOWN OF BELOIT, BEING A PART OF THE S.E. ¼ OF 
SECTION 3, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 4TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE E. CORNER OF SECTION 3; THENCE S 02°02’38” W 
1332.42 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE N 88°28’09” W 2664.21 FEET 
TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE N 01°02’56 E 1319.09 
FEET TO THE EAST – WEST CENTERLINE OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE S 88°46’28” E 2687.27 FEET 
ALONG SAID EAST – WEST CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 81.4022 
ACRES. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit does hereby 

conditionally approve the attached two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for 3918 S. Duggan 
Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of 
approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 4th day of December, 2024. 
 

       Plan Commission 
 
 
   

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 

ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

34


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2024-1145 - Attachment
	2024-1146 - Attachment 
	2024-1147 - Attachment
	2024-1148 - Attachment

